
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) 
Committee 

 
Date: MONDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2015 

Time: 12.00 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Mark Boleat (Chairman) 

Roger Chadwick (Deputy Chairman) 
Alderman The Lord Mountevans 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
George Gillon 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Deputy Catherine McGuinness 
Edward Lord 
Hugh Morris 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson 
Sir Michael Snyder 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
Alderman Sir David Wootton 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Angela Roach 

tel. no.: 020 7332 3685 
angela.roach@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio visual recording 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 – Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 

 To agree the public minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held on 16 July 2015. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. PROJECT FUNDING UPDATE 

 Report of the Chamberlain  
 
NB: To be read in conjunction with the separately bound non-public 
appendices (circulated electronically only). The Sub-Committee’s 
recommendations on this item will be considered by the Policy and Resources 
Committee later this day. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-

COMMITTEE 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act.  
 

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda 
 

8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held on 16 July 2015. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 18) 

 
9. POULTRY MARKET - UPDATED GATEWAY 3 OPTIONS REPORT 

 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 
NB: This report has been considered and agreed by the Markets Committee and 
the Projects Sub-Committee. 

 For Information 
 (Pages 19 - 40) 

 



3 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED  WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



RESOURCE ALLOCATION SUB (POLICY AND RESOURCES) COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 16 July 2015  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) 
Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 

16 July 2015 at 2.45 pm 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Mark Boleat (Chairman) 
Roger Chadwick (Deputy Chairman) 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
George Gillon 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Jeremy Mayhew 
 

Deputy Catherine McGuinness 
Edward Lord 
Hugh Morris 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Sir Michael Snyder 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
Alderman Sir David Wootton 
 

Officers: 
John Barradell 
Simon Murrells 
Alistair MacLellan 
Emma Sawers 
Tony Halmos 
Damian Nussbaum  
Peter Kane 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
Assistant Town Clerk 
Town Clerk’s Department 
Town Clerk’s Department 
Director of Public Relations 
Director of Economic Development 
Chamberlain 

Caroline Al-Beyerty 
Christopher Bell 
Paul Nagle 
Graham Bell 
Peter Bennett 

Financial Services Director  
Chamberlain’s Department 
Chamberlain’s Department 
Chief Information Officer 
City Surveyor  

  

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies.  
 

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. MINUTES  
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 May 2015 were approved as a correct 
record.  
 

4. OPERATIONAL PROPERTY REVIEW  
The Sub Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain and the City 
Surveyor on the Operational Property Review.  
 
RECEIVED  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business.  
 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED, that under section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 

8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 28 May 2015 were approved as 
a correct record.  
 

9. BARBICAN CENTRE AND GSMD CAPITAL CAP REPLACEMENT  
The Sub Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain on the Barbican 
Centre and GSMD Capital Cap Replacement.  
 

10. PROJECT FUNDING UPDATE  
The Sub Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain regarding Project 
Funding.  
 

11. POLICE ACCOMMODATION PROJECT - GATEWAY 3 UPDATE  
The Sub Committee considered a joint report of the Chamberlain, City Surveyor 
and City of London Police Commissioner regarding the Police Accommodation 
Project – Gateway 3.  
 

12. BARBICAN EXHIBITION HALL 1 - ENABLING WORKS  
The Sub Committee considered a report of the City Surveyor regarding 
Barbican Exhibition Hall 1 Enabling Works.  
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED  
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
Action Fraud 
Members received an update from the Assistant Commissioner of City Police 
regarding funding for the National Fraud Intelligence Bureau’s Action Fraud 
system.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 2



The meeting ended at 3.35 pm 
 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
Contact Officer:  
Alistair MacLellan  
020 7332 1416 
alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Committee:  
Resource Allocation Sub 
Policy and Resources Committee  

Date:  
19 October 2015 
19 October 2015 
 

Subject: Project Funding Update 
 

Public 
 

Report of: Chamberlain 
 

For Decision 
 

 
Summary 

 
1. The Policy and Resources Committee has agreed to set aside annual sums of 

£3m in both the City Fund and City’s Cash financial forecasts to provide a 
degree of flexibility to fund smaller value new capital schemes as they arise.  
This report advises on the current unallocated balances on each of the funds in 
2015/16 and the potential schemes which may require funding. 

 
2. Some £0.390m has been allocated to date from the total 2015/16 City Fund 

provision for new schemes of £2.486m.  Agreement is now sought to allocate a 
further sum of £1.925m towards three proposals:- 

 

 £0.850m to meet the shortfall in funding towards the £5.2m total cost of the 
Sir John Cass School extension scheme.  This proposal has arisen from a 
government-led strategy and has therefore been classified as an essential 
asset enhancement (which is subject to final approval by the Sir John Cass 
Foundation);  

 £0.486m towards the £0.650m total cost of the Frobisher Crescent Level 4 
meeting and conference facilities scheme at the Barbican Centre to generate 
additional income (part of the Service Based Review (SBR) invest to save 
proposals which require up-front funding); and 

 £0.589m to fund the provision of a new retail unit within the Barbican Centre 
to generate additional income (also part of the Service Based Review 
(SBR) invest to save proposals which require up-front funding).  

 
3. If all the above funding requests are agreed, a balance of £0.171m would 

remain.  However, if all the City Fund schemes in the pipeline which have been 
currently identified are allowed to progress in 2015/16, a shortfall of £1.630m 
would arise.  In the event that future anticipated requests for funding should 
materialise which would result in the available provision being exceeded, it is 
proposed that a bid to the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee for an additional 
draw down from City Fund reserves to support the SBR proposals be made. 

 
4. The total 2015/16 City’s Cash provision is £3.125m of which £0.458m has been 

allocated to date, leaving a balance of £2.667m.  However, if all the City’s Cash 
schemes in the pipeline which have currently been identified were allowed to 
progress, an unallocated balance of £0.177m would remain. There are currently 
no new requests for funding.   

  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Recommendation 
 
4. It is recommended that Members:- 
 
 

 Agree to the allocation of £1.925m from the 2015/16 City Fund 
provision for new schemes to provide funding for the three projects 
detailed above, subject to the agreement of the relevant gateway 
reports and other approvals as appropriate. 

 Note that, in the event that future anticipated requests for funding 
should materialise which would result in the available provision being 
exceeded, a bid for an additional draw down from the City Fund 
reserves may be made in support of the SBR income generating 
proposals. 

 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 
1. The Project Procedure was implemented in November 2011. 
 
2. The Policy and Resources Committee have agreed to set aside sums of £21m 

(£3m per annum) over the period from 2012/13 to 2018/19 in both the City 
Fund and City’s Cash financial forecasts (£42m in total) to provide a degree of 
flexibility to fund smaller value new capital schemes as they arise.  

 
3. In June 2012, the Policy and Resources Committee agreed that only projects 

that are considered essential and which fit within the following categories 
may be approved at Gateways 1-4 of the Project Procedure, until further 
notice: 

1) Health and safety compliance 
2) Statutory compliance 
3) Fully/substantially reimbursable 
4) Spend  to  save  or  income  generating,  generally  with  a  short  

payback period (as a rule of thumb within 5 years) 
 

4. In exceptional circumstances, other projects considered to be a priority by the 
Resource Allocation Sub-Committee will be allowed to proceed. 

 
5. The majority of projects working their way through the early gateways are to 

be funded either from internal ring-fenced sources such as the Barbican 
Centre and GSMD Capital Caps and the City Surveyor’s Designated Sales 
Pools or from external sources such as Section 106 deposits and 
Government/Transport for London grants which are restricted for specific 
purposes. 

 
6. Decisions about the allocation of resources for those projects that require 

funding is generally taken when a scheme reaches Gateway 4a – Inclusion in 
Capital Programme. To help members to prioritise the allocation of City 
resources to projects from a wider range of funding sources, the Priorities 

Page 6



Board has been created to provide a more holistic approach to the allocation 
of project finance, by considering bids for funding from a range of available 
(less constrained) sources, including in particular future receipts from the 
unallocated pots of the City’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 

Funding from the 2015/16 provisions 
 

7. The provisions for new schemes in 2015/16 amount to £2.486m for City Fund 
(£3m less £1m for Museum + £0.486m unallocated 2014/15 balance carried 
forward) and £3.125m for City’s Cash (£3m + £0.125m unallocated 2014/15 
balance carried forward). 

 
8. There are three projects which require a funding decision now in order for 

projects to progress.  The 2015/16 City Fund provision for new schemes has 
been identified as the most appropriate source of funding by the Corporate 
Priorities Board: 

 

 Extension of the Sir John Cass School – funding contribution of £850,000 
towards the £5.2m estimated cost.  This proposal has arisen from a 
government-led strategy to accommodate the increasing demand for 
school places and has therefore been classified as an essential asset 
enhancement.  It has a total estimated cost of £5.2m of which £4.39m of 
funding (comprising Government grants, external contributions from S106 
monies and the Foundation and other education-related resources) has 
been identified, leaving a shortfall of £0.850m.   

 Investment in Meeting and Conference Facilities at the Barbican Centre - 
funding of £485,800 for implementation. This proposal aims to generate 
additional income through enhancement of the meeting and conference 
facilities on Level 4 of Frobisher Crescent.  A budget of £14,200 was 
previously allocated to meet feasibility costs and funding for 
implementation is now being requested.   

 Investment in a New Retail Unit at the Barbican Centre - funding of 
£589,000 for implementation. This proposal aims to generate additional 
income through the construction of a new shop in a more prominent 
location within the Barbican Centre.   

 Whilst both of the above Barbican Centre proposals are classified as 
advisable, they form a significant element of the Barbican Centre’s SBR 
proposals and are therefore considered a priority.  In order for the 
schemes to progress they will require up-front funding.  Subsequently the 
Barbican Centre’s revenue budget would be permanently reduced to 
reflect the additional net income achieved.  

 
9. A list of the schemes which may require funding from the City Fund and 

City’s Cash provisions for 2015/16 and future years is provided in the 
Appendix.  

 
10. For City Fund, if all of the cumulative requests to date were agreed, (including 

the SBR proposals of £1.219m), a balance of £0.171m would remain.  
However, the Appendix indicates that a potential shortfall of £1.630m could 
arise, mainly as a result of the aim to fund the capital cost of the Barbican SBR 

Page 7



proposals from the City Fund provision in the first instance.  The impact of the 
SBR funding on the provision is illustrated in the table below: 

 

2015/16 City 
Fund 
Provision for 
new schemes 

SBR 
Funding 
Request

s 
         
           £m 

Other 
Funding 
Request

s 
         £m 
 

Total 
Funding 
Request

s 
        £m 

Agreed 
to date 

Requested 
Now 

0.144 
1.075 

0.246 
0.850 

0.390 
1.925 

Cumulative 
requests to 
date 
Future 
requests 
anticipated 

1.219 

0.811 

1.096 
0.990 

2.315 
1.801 

Total including 
future 
anticipated 
funding 
requests 

2.030 2.086 4.116 

Availabl
e 
provisio
n 

  2.486 

Potential 
shortfall 

   
1.630 

 
11. From the above table it can be seen that the provision of £2.486m would be 

adequate to fund all non-SBR requests (currently anticipated at £2.086m) and 
consequently that the potential shortfall results from the accommodation of the 
SBR funding.  

 
12. Therefore, mindful of the future anticipated shortfall which will arise if all the 

expected requests materialise it is proposed that: 

 At this stage, the Sir John Cass request for £0.850m to address the 
funding shortfall and the Barbican Centre requests for £1.075m in support 
of the SBR process be agreed in the first instance, all of which can be 
contained within the existing provision available.  

 In the event that further requests  materialise which would result in the 
available provision being exceeded, it is proposed that a request to the 
Resource Allocation Sub-Committee for an additional draw down from City 
Fund reserves to support the SBR proposals be made. 

Page 8



13. For City’s Cash, the Appendix indicates an unallocated balance of £0.177m   if 
all schemes were to be progressed. However, this includes schemes that are 
not classified as essential. If funding for these schemes were not agreed due 
to failing the qualifying criteria, the unallocated balance would increase. There 
are no requests for funding from the City’s Cash provision at this stage. 

 

Conclusion 

14. Requests for funding totalling £1.925m in respect of three City Fund proposals 
require a decision now.  The Corporate Priorities Board has concluded that the 
2015/16 City Fund provision for new schemes is the most appropriate source 
of funding.  

 
15. A potential shortfall of £1.630m could arise if all of the identified City Fund 

schemes were to be allowed to progress in 2015/16, largely due to the up-front 
funding for the Barbican Centre SBR proposals from the provision.  At this 
stage, it is proposed that the three funding requests totalling £1.925m be 
agreed from within the available provision in the first instance.  However, In 
the event that further requests  materialise which would result in the available 
provision being exceeded, it is proposed that a request to the Resource 
Allocation Sub-Committee for an additional draw down from City Fund 
reserves to support the SBR proposals be made. 

 
16. There are no requests for funding from the 2015/16 City’s Cash provision at 

this stage. An unallocated balance of £0.177m is indicated if all City’s Cash 
schemes were to be progressed. However, this includes schemes that are not 
classified as essential. If funding for these schemes were not agreed due to 
failing the qualifying criteria, the unallocated balance would increase.   

 

 

 

Appendices 

 Appendix  – Projects which may seek funding from 2015/16 and 
future City Fund and City’s Cash provisions for new schemes 

 

 

 

Caroline Al-Beyerty 
Financial Services Director, Chamberlain’s Department 
T: 020 7332 1164 
E: caroline.al-beyerty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 9

mailto:caroline.al-beyerty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Projects which may seek funding from the 2015/16 and subsequent years' provisions for new schemes

Appendix

H:\COMMITTEES\P&R\Reports\Reports 2015\151019\Project Funding Update - AppendixApp. 2 2015-16 + beyond funding

Project Name
Indicative Funding Requirement from  

2015/16 City Fund Allocation (£m) Category and Priority
Indicative Funding Requirement from  

Future Year City Fund Allocations (£m)

CITY FUND

Total provision of £2.486m 
(comprising £3m original less £1m 

earmarked for Museum plus £0.486m 
re 2014/15 unallocated balance)

Annual Provisions of £2m net (after 
allowing for £1m p.a. earmarked for 

Museum)

Funding requests for which 
approval has previously 
been granted

Barbican Library 
Transformation 0.012

 6. Improvements in productivity 
/ efficiency -

(Initial funding to formulate 
plan)

b. Advisable

Shoe Lane Library 
Transformation 0.012

 6. Improvements in productivity 
/ efficiency -

(Initial funding to formulate 
plan)

b. Advisable

Barbican Centre - SBR spend 
to save proposals (Coffee 
Points and Mobile Bars) 0.130

 6. Improvements in productivity 
/ efficiency              b. Advisable

-

Barbican Centre - SBR spend 
to save proposals (Frobisher 
Crescent Level 4 meeting and 
conference room investment) 0.014 3b Income Generating -

b. Advisable
Libraries and London 
Metropolitan Archives IT and 
Infrastructure up to 0.100

7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -
B. Advisable

London Metropolitan Archives 0.014 7.(b) Major Renewals -
Future Accommodation 
Planning

B. Advisable

Joint IT Network Refresh 0.060
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

(City Fund Share excl Police) A. Essential

End User Device Renewal 0.048
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

(City Fund Share) A. Essential
Sub-total previously 

approved 0.390

Funding request requiring 
approval now
Sir John Cass School 
Extension 0.850

7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

Total cost of £5.2m of which £0.850m 
funding shortfall proposed to be met from 

City Fund provision

A. Essential

Barbican Centre - SBR spend 
to save proposal:  Frobisher 
Crescent Level 4 meeting and 
conference room investment 
and public spaces environment 0.486 3b Income Generating -

b. Advisable
Barbican Centre - SBR spend 
to save proposal: New Retail 
Unit 0.589 3b Income Generating -

b. Advisable
sub-total approval now 

requested 1.925
Future funding requests 
anticipated

Joint IT Network Refresh 0.300
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement 0.400

(City Fund Element)
(indicative cost of implementation)

A. Essential (indicative cost of later phase 
implementation)

End User Device Renewal 0.690
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

(City Fund Share) (Renewal of devices) A. Essential
Barbican Estate Renewal of 
Door Entry Systems 

-

7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement  B. 
Advisable 0.274

(net cost after £3.2m contribution from long 
lessees)

Barbican Centre  -remaining 
SBR spend to save proposals 0.811

3b Income Generating -
b. Advisable

sub-total future requests 1.801

City Fund Total 4.116 0.674

Headroom/(Shortfall) (1.630)

Page 11



Projects which may seek funding from the 2015/16 and subsequent years' provisions for new schemes

Appendix

H:\COMMITTEES\P&R\Reports\Reports 2015\151019\Project Funding Update - AppendixApp. 2 2015-16 + beyond funding

Project Name
Indicative Funding Requirement from  
2015/16 City's Cash Allocation (£m)

Indicative Funding Requirement from  
Future Year City's Cash Allocations (£m) `

CITY'S CASH

Total Provision of £3.125m (including 
£0.125m re 2014/15 unallocated 

balance)

Annual Provisions of £3m

Funding requests for which 
approval has previously 
been granted
Lord Mayor's Coach 0.243 7.(b) Major renewals -
Conservation and Repair

    (includes 0.125 for urgent repairs 
subject to confirmation at Gateway 5)

B. Advisable

Joint IT Network Refresh 0.060
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

(City's Cash Share excl Police)
A. Essential

End User Device Renewal 0.048
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement

(City's Cash Share) (enabling phase) A. Essential
Superfast City up to 0.107 5. Other priority developments -
Implementation

(Wired Broadband Workstream Only)
A. Essential

Sub-total previously 
approved 0.458

Future funding requests 
anticipated

Joint IT Network Refresh 0.300
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement 0.400

(City's Cash Element)
(indicative cost of implementation)

A. Essential (indicative cost of later phase 
implementation)

End User Device Renewal 0.690
7.(a) Asset 
Enhancement/Improvement -

(City's Cash Share) (Renewal of devices) A. Essential
Baldwin's Pond and Deer 
Sanctuary 1.500 1. Health and Safety -

  (Deferred from 2014/15, indicative cost 
only) B. Advisable

0.000 5. Other Priority 1.901
C. Desirable (External funding sources currently being 

pursued by the Church)

sub-total future requests 2.490

City's Cash Total 2.948 2.301
Headroom/(Shortfall) 0.177

.

St Lawrence Jewry Church 
renovation programme 

Page 12



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Project Funding Update
	Project Funding Update - Appendix
	App. 2 2015-16 + beyond funding


	8 Non-Public Minutes
	9 Poultry Market - Updated Gateway 3 Options Report

